1  
2  
3 **IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA**

4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26

Electronically Filed  
Apr 02 2020 10:00 a.m.  
Elizabeth A. Brown  
Clerk of Supreme Court

RAJWANT KAUR,

Appellant/Cross-Respondent

vs.

JASWINDER SINGH,

Respondent/Cross-Appellant.

CASE NO. 80090

**APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF**

RACHEAL H. MASTEL, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 11646

KAINEN LAW GROUP, PLLC

3303 Novat Street, Suite 200

Las Vegas, Nevada 89129

Tel: (702) 823-4900

Fax: (702) 823-4488

Email: [service@kainenlawgroup.com](mailto:service@kainenlawgroup.com)

ATTORNEYS FOR APPELLANT

**NRAP 26.1 DISCLOSURE**

## JURISDICTION STATEMENT

This is an appeal from a final judgment pursuant to NRAP 3A(b)(1). The Order to be appealed is the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order, which was filed on October 22, 2019 (AA0281-0289), and for which Notice of Entry was done on October 22, 2019. AA0290-0301. The appeal from that Order was timely filed on November 19, 2019.

## ROUTING STATEMENT

Pursuant to NRAP 17(b)(10) this is an appeal from a family law decision which is presumptively assigned to the Court of Appeals. However, pursuant to NRAP 17(a)(11) and (12), there are issues within this appeal which should be heard by the Supreme Court.

Specifically, this case will involve: 1) whether the application of *Vaile v. Eighth Judicial District Court*, 118 Nev. 262, 44 P.3d 506 (2002) was appropriate, 2) whether the expansion of NRCP 60(b) allowed the Court to set aside the Decree of Divorce, and 3) whether NRCP 60(d)(3), permitted the Court to set aside the Decree. As this case will require interpretation of *Vaile*, NRCP 60(b)(6) (which has not been considered by this Court) and how the District

1 Court's interpretation of *Vaile* impacts its understanding of NRCP 60(d)(3), it is  
2 appropriate that this case be retained by the Nevada Supreme Court.  
3

#### 4 STATEMENT OF ISSUES

5 Appellant (hereinafter "Rajwant") has identified four (4) issues to be  
6 addressed within this opening brief, under which she believes the Court's Order  
7 was in error.  
8

9  
10 1. Whether the District Court erred in denying Rajwant's request to set  
11 aside the 2004 Decree of Divorce.  
12

13 2. Whether the Court erred in finding that *Vaile* was applicable to the  
14 facts of this case.  
15

16 3. Whether the application of *Vaile* to this matter creates an inequitable  
17 result under the facts of this case.  
18

19 4. Whether the Court erred in failing to consider whether Rajwant's  
20 request to set aside the 2004 Decree of Divorce was proper under NRCP 60(b)(6)  
21 or 60(d)(3).  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26



## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The parties were married in India in 1989. **AA009**. Rajwant was a resident of the United States. **AA00463**. In 1993, Respondent (hereinafter "Jaswinder") moved to the U.S. and the parties settled in Southern California. **AA0312; 0464-0467**. In August 2004, having never resided in Nevada, the parties traveled to Las Vegas for approximately 24 hours, where they signed a Joint Petition for Divorce, as well as a Decree of Divorce. **AA0468-0469; 0471**. Although Rajwant speaks and reads very little English, neither document was read to, nor fully explained to her. **AA0482**. She was simply directed by Jaswinder to sign, and did as he demanded. **AA0471**. Thereafter, Rajwant and Jaswinder returned to California, where they continued to reside together as husband and wife for the next 14 years. **AA0474-0475; 0487**.

In 2018, Rajwant filed for divorce in California, where the parties have continuously resided together since 1993. **AA0484**. Initially, Jaswinder filed an Answer which acknowledged the existence of a valid marriage. **AA0402-0403**. Nearly six months later, Jaswinder amended his Answer to claim that the parties had already been divorced in Nevada. **AA0408-0409**. Due to the fact that the parties had not been residents of Nevada at any time, and the fact that they had,

1 for the 14 years thereafter, remained in exactly the same circumstances as they  
2 had during the first 15 years of their "legal" marriage, Rajwant filed a Motion in  
3 Nevada to Set Aside the Decree of Divorce on the basis of fraud on the Court,  
4 due to the lack of jurisdiction. AA0041-0050. Jaswinder opposed the same  
5 (AA0057-0072) and the Court set a trial. AA0138-0140. After the trial, the Court  
6 determined that the fraud was committed, that Jaswinder was not a credible  
7 witness (AA0500), but that Rajwant had not met her burden to prove duress  
8 (AA0502-0504), and that *Vaile v. Eighth Judicial District Court*, 118 Nev. 262,  
9 44 P.3d 512 (2002) prohibited her from setting aside the Decree despite the fraud  
10 on the Court. AA0494; 0502; 0504-0505. This appeal followed.  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15

## 16 STATEMENT OF FACTS

17 Rajwant and Jaswinder entered into an arranged marriage in Punjab, India  
18 in 1989. AA0009. Rajwant spoke, and still speaks, very little English. AA0464.  
19 The parties continuously resided in California from 1993 through the present.  
20 AA0464. In all ways, the marriage was a traditional Indian marriage. Jaswinder  
21 very much dictated to, and controlled, Rajwant.  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26



1 In 2004, Jaswinder approached Rajwant and informed her that they would  
2 be getting a "paper divorce." **AA0464**. The purpose of that Divorce, he told her,  
3 would not change their marriage, but rather, simply allow her to enter into a  
4 marriage with his brother, so as to be the bridge by which this brother would be  
5 able to come to the United States. **AA0473**. As is considered proper in a  
6 "traditional Indian marriage," Rajwant did not question her husband. She was  
7 taken to Nevada, where they met with a man she did not know, who took them  
8 to an office where Rajwant was presented with papers she could not read, and  
9 told her to sign. **AA0471-0472**. She did as directed. **AA0471; 0475**. Thereafter,  
10 the parties drove back home to California together, where they continued to  
11 reside together for another 14 years. **AA0316; 0474-0475**.

12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17 Later that same year, Jaswinder, his parents (who had resided with the  
18 parties since 2000), and Rajwant traveled back to India together, where Rajwant,  
19 at Jaswinder's direction, was to marry his brother. **AA0458; 0472; 0477**. They  
20 were there for approximately three weeks, before returning to California together.  
21 **AA0459; 0477**. The Court determined that marriage was a "sham marriage."  
22 **AA0503 - 0504**.



1 After their trip to India, the parties continued the life they had maintained  
2 together in California since 1993 (AA0474-0475), living together, sharing a  
3 marriage bed, and comingling their property. This lasted until 2018. AA0487. In  
4 2018, Rajwant discovered that Jaswinder had entered into an engagement with  
5 another woman in India. AA0473. Upon learning the same, Rajwant filed for  
6 divorce in California, where the parties had lived together since 1993. AA0467.  
7 Jaswinder filed an Answer admitting the existance of a valid marriage. It was not  
8 until six months later, after Jaswinder filed his *amended* Answer alleging that the  
9 parties were previously divorced, that Rajwant had any notion that the papers she  
10 was told to sign (but couldn't read), so many years before in Nevada, had any  
11 legal impact on her marriage. AA0487. She'd been repeatedly told by Jaswinder  
12 that it was a "paper divorce," and was meaningless.

### 19 SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

20 The District Court, after holding a trial and taking evidence, found that the  
21 2004 Decree of Divorce, based upon a Joint Petition, constituted a fraud against  
22 the Court. The District Court found that Jaswinder was not a credible witness,  
23 and that neither party had ever been a resident of Nevada at any time. AA0500-  
24 0501. However, the Court also found that Rajwant had failed to meet her burden

1 to prove duress on her part in the entry of the Decree, and therefore found that  
2 *Vaile* prevented the Court from setting aside the Decree of Divorce  
3  
4 notwithstanding the clear evidence of fraud. AA0490; 0504 However, due to 1)  
5 the difference in the actions of the parties in this matter and the actions of the  
6 parties in *Vaile*, 2) the enactment of NRCP 60b(6), and 3) NRCP 60(d)(3), the  
7 Court erred in failing to set aside the Decree. The result is an untenable,  
8 inequitable result, which harms both Rajwant, and the Court's legitimacy.  
9  
10

## 11 ARGUMENT 12

### 13 I. The District Court Erred In Finding *Vaile* Prevented the Court from 14 Setting Aside the 2004 Decree of Divorce. 15

#### 16 A. Standard of Review 17

18 "The Court reviews district court decisions concerning divorce  
19 proceedings for an abuse of discretion. District Court rulings supported by  
20 substantial evidence will not be disturbed absent an abuse of discretion.  
21 However, the district Court must apply the correct legal standard." *Doan v.*  
22 *Wilkerson*, 130 Nev. 449, 327 P.3d 498, 501 (2014).  
23  
24  
25  
26



1 Orders "denying [] NRCP 60(b) motion[s] for relief" are also subject to the  
2 Abuse of Discretion standard. *Kahn v. Orme*, 108 Nev. 510, 835 P.2d 790, 792  
3 (1992). "District judges are afforded broad discretion in ruling on NRCP 60(b)  
4 motions. *Id.*

5  
6  
7 B. *Vaile* Is Distinguishable and the Application of the Same Creates an  
8 Inequitable Result.

9  
10 The District Court erred in its finding that *Vaile* required the denial of  
11 Rajwant's request. The facts of this case are incredibly different from the facts of  
12 *Vaile*. To apply the decision in *Vaile* to this case is to create a grossly inequitable  
13 result, wherein one party benefits exclusively from the fraud he committed and  
14 he receives a windfall.  
15

16  
17 In *Vaile*, the parties jointly intended a Divorce and a separation of their  
18 persons and marital estate. There was litigation in three countries, all related to  
19 that separation. 44 P.3d at 506. In the litigation in the United Kingdom, the  
20 parties signed an independent separation agreement which agreed (in advance of  
21 any U.S. filing) that Husband would file the Divorce in Nevada. *Id* at 509-510.  
22 Wife (the party to request that the Decree be Set Aside), not only participated in  
23 the filing of the Divorce, she relied on both the validity of the underlying  
24  
25  
26



1 separation agreement and the Decree in relocating with the children and  
2 addressing custody in Norway, and when she remarried. *Id* at 514. It was only  
3 after Husband tried to "piggy-back," his desire for custody onto the Nevada  
4 Decree that she then objected to the validity of the Decree itself. In light of the  
5 fact that the parties in *Vaile* filed a Complaint and Answer (in contrast to the  
6 Joint Petition filed by the parties herein) it is clear in *Vaile* that the wife was well  
7 aware of the divorce and its impact. She was clearly a willing and able  
8 accomplice to the fraud, as the Court in *Vaile* determined. *Id*.

13 The facts of this matter could not be more dissimilar. Rajwant did not  
14 understand, nor consent to, the divorce. There was never any reliance on the  
15 "divorce," by Rajwant. In fact, all evidence, admitted by both parties, was that  
16 immediately after the so-called "divorce" was "finalized," the parties returned  
17 to California together and for more than 14 years continued to reside and act as  
18 they had throughout their marriage. **AA0474-0475**. Their assets remained  
19 co-mingled, they continued to reside in the same apartment - and for years they  
20 continued to sleep in the same bed and maintained intimate relations. **AA0475**.  
21 Jaswinder even purchased a residence in 2009, of which he took titled as "a  
22 married man." **AA0385-0386**. He continued to list Rajwant as his wife on



1 important documents. **AA0397-0398**. In all matters, the parties maintained their  
2 marriage. It was only clear that the parties' marriage had ended in-fact when  
3 Jaswinder became engaged to someone else. At that time, Rajwant filed for a  
4 divorce in California where the same was appropriate and Jaswinder Answered,  
5 admitting they were married. **AA0402**.

6  
7  
8 It is clear from the testimony that Jaswinder arranged and organized the  
9 fraudulent "divorce." Rajwant, conditioned to obey her husband without  
10 question, merely signed where she was told to sign. **AA0471**. She did not speak  
11 or read English. There was no agreement to the divorce. There was no hearing  
12 by which the Court ascertained the truth of the parties' "residency." This was a  
13 joint petition, filled out at a notary public. **AA0328-0330**. In fact, although not  
14 a credible witness, Jaswinder admitted that even he had not read the actual  
15 documents. **AA0363**. The difference, however, is that it is clear from the  
16 testimony, that the "scheme" (the "paper divorce," and the intended marriage  
17 between Rajwant and Jaswinder's brother), belonged exclusively to Jaswinder.  
18 Rajwant was not a willing participant in the fraud. Rather, she was equally  
19 victimized by the same. The most Rajwant did was abide by the instructions of  
20 her husband. It is clear that she did not know how the intended marriage to  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26



1 Jaswinder's brother would have impacted her marriage to Jaswinder in America.

2 It is clear that she was not in control of those actions. She testified that Jaswinder  
3 and his parents took her to India for the marriage. **AA0476-0477**. She returned  
4 with them (Jaswinder and his parents, not his brother), a mere two to three weeks  
5 later, and everything remained "status quo." **AA0381-0382; 0474-0475**. This  
6 was by no means an action she took under her own volition.  
7  
8  
9

10 From 2004 until 2018, Rajwant had no idea that her marriage did not exist.  
11 Nothing had changed in her life to suggest it had. **AA0487**. Jaswinder's actions  
12 suggest that he didn't believe the divorce was valid either, until six months into  
13 his actual divorce, when he realized he could use his prior fraud to his advantage  
14 in the California litigation.  
15  
16

17 In *Vaile*, the Nevada Supreme Court determined that the insufficiency of  
18 a Decree for lack of jurisdiction did not make a Decree void, but rather voidable.  
19 44 P.3d at 512-513. Thereafter, the Court found that the Wife was judicially  
20 estopped from challenging the Decree. *Id.* at 514. The District Court rejected  
21 Wife's claims that she had been coerced or under duress. The Supreme Court  
22 determined the findings supported that conclusion and stated: "a party who has  
23 stated an oath in a prior proceeding, 'as in a pleading,' that a given fact is true,  
24  
25  
26



1 may not be allowed to deny the same fact in a subsequent action." *Id.* The Court  
2 then specifically looked to the facts which showed that Wife took advantage of  
3 the validity of the Decree in her later actions, specifically in custody and in her  
4 marriage. *Id.*

5  
6  
7 In contrast, Rajwant should not be estopped. She did not rely on the  
8 Decree at any point; rather, the evidence shows that her reliance was on the  
9 continuance of her marriage and the continue assurances of her husband that it  
10 was a "meaningless" "paper" divorce, which she had not been given an  
11 opportunity to read or understand. There is a distinct difference between filing  
12 an Answer (as happened in *Vaile*), even in proper person, and filing a Joint  
13 Petition. The District Court found that Rajwant was credible, and that her  
14 testimony was that she was not informed of what she was signing, only that she  
15 was required by her Husband to sign the document which she could not read.

16  
17  
18  
19  
20 **AA0471.**

21  
22 The District Court did find that Rajwant had not met her burden to prove  
23 that she had signed under duress. **AA0502-0503**, because she did not find  
24 evidence that Rajwant had been forced to sign under physical threat or with a  
25 proverbial "gun to the head." **AA0497**. However, the Supreme Court's review in  
26



1 *Vaile* did not rely solely on duress and coercion in determining the issue of  
2  
3 estoppel. As previously stated, Wife's reliance on the validity of the Decree was  
4 also part of the consideration in *Vaile*.

5  
6 The evidence in this matter supports that Rajwant was unaware of what she  
7 signed and what the documents meant. Although the district court found that she  
8 was not operating under duress, it is also true that she was not operating with  
9 reasonable knowledge regarding the matter. Further, there was no evidence to  
10 support the idea that the divorce was a divorce-in-fact.  
11  
12

13 Decrees of Divorce, particularly where a joint petition was entered, are  
14 separation agreements and therefore contracts, subject to contract law. *See* NRS  
15 123.080, and *Holyoak v. Holyoak*, Docket No. 67490 (Order of Affirmance, May  
16 12, 2016). As such, like any other contract, in order for there to have been an  
17 agreement, there must have been capacity and intent. *See In re Estate of Kern*,  
18 107 Nev. 988, 823 P.2d 275, 277 (1991). Rajwant could not have had the  
19 necessary capacity, given that she couldn't read the Decree, it was not translated  
20 into a language which she understood, she did not understand it, it contained  
21 false terms as to property, and was led to believe that it was not "real." *See*  
22 *General Motors v. Jackson*, 111 Nev. 1026, 1031 - 1032, 900 P.2d 345, 348 -349  
23  
24  
25  
26



1 (1995). As *General Motors* makes clear, the issue is whether or not Rajwant was  
2 "capable" of understanding the contract. Clearly, in light of the fact that the  
3 document was in English, and not given to her to seek translation to be able to  
4 read (or discuss the ramifications with an attorney) and was not translated for her,  
5 Rajwant was wholly incapable of understanding. Furthermore, Jaswinder *knew*  
6 that Rajwant was under a gross mis-impression of the Decree, it was the  
7 impression he gave her and cultivated until it no longer suited him. *Id.* Finally,  
8 Rajwant had no intention of entering into a divorce, which is clear from the  
9 evidence presented at trial. 823 P.2d at 277.

14 As Justice Young's dissent in *Vaile* points out, the purpose of judicial  
15 estoppel is to "protect the integrity of the judicial process [by] prohibit[ing]  
16 parties from deliberately changing positions according to the exigencies of the  
17 moment." 44 P.3d at 522. It is "an equitable doctrine applied by the court at its  
18 discretion." *Id.* Amongst the basis for that discretion is where "a party's prior  
19 position was based on inadvertence or mistake." *Id.*

23 There is a lack of equity under the facts of this case created by the Court's  
24 reliance on *Vaile*. Rajwant's signature was clearly based on mistake and  
25 inadvertance. She was unaware of the purpose of the document she was signing.  
26

1 Rajwant speaks very little English and she was unable to read the document.  
2  
3 Further she had no legal advice or understanding of what the document said or  
4 its legal impact. She was not the initiating party, *and* she was unaware of  
5 Nevada's residency requirement. The document itself even contained mistakes  
6 of fact, or gross misrepresentations - which prevented Rajwant (even in 2004)  
7 from having an equitable "divorce." The document claimed there was no  
8 property, although both parties acknowledged that there was. **AA0364-0365;**  
9  
10 **0483.**

11  
12  
13 Perhaps most egregiously, for fourteen years after the "divorce," the parties  
14 continued to engage in a "putative marriage," continuing to commingle assets and  
15 operate as they had during their marriage. **AA0492.** See *Hay v. Hay*, 100 Nev.  
16 196, 678 P.2d 672 (1984). During that entire time, to the best of Rajwant's  
17 knowledge, she remained in a marriage, accruing community assets and the rights  
18 and obligations related to a long term marriage. The difference, in equity, is  
19 between a 15 year marriage (from which she received nothing) and a 29 year  
20 marriage.  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26



1 If *Vaile* is strictly applied, Rajwant was married for 15 years, and has lost  
2 *half* of the rights (and perhaps all of the property) she may receive in separating  
3 from her husband, including property, retirement and alimony considerations. If  
4 that is the case, then Jaswinder has effectively been rewarded with a substantial  
5 windfall for committing a fraud on the Court; a fraud that has also caused serious  
6 harm to Rajwant. Validating this fraudulent divorce effectively allows Jaswinder  
7 to kick his wife of nearly 30 years to the curb.

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