### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

CASE NO. 80090

Electronically Filed May 18 2020 11:11 p.m. Elizabeth A. Brown Clerk of Supreme Court

### RAJWANT KAUR,

Appellant / Cross-Respondent,

VS.

### JASWINDER SINGH,

Respondent / Cross-Appellant.

# ON APPEAL FROM THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT CASE NO. 04D323977

# RESPONDENT / CROSS-APPELLANT'S ANSWERING BRIEF / CROSS-OPENING BRIEF

F. Peter James, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 10091
Law Offices of F. Peter James, Esq.
3821 West Charleston Blvd., Suite 250
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102
702-256-0087
Counsel for Respondent / Cross-Appellant

### NRAP 26.1 DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

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

As stated, Rajwant knew that the Decree was entered as she subsequently married another man. (1 AA 45:22-23). Rajwant, however, waited over fourteen (14) years to request a set aside. Nevada law provides that two years is too long to wait to request a set aside as to a purportedly void order—let alone fourteen.

As to fraud, NRCP 60(b) is subject to a six-month time limit. *See* NRCP 60(c)(1). If you go outside of the set aside rule (which Rajwant did not), Nevada law provides for a three-year limitation period for an independent action for fraud. *See* NRS 11.190(3)(d). Either way, a fourteen-year delay in filing is not permitted under Nevada law.

Still, the district court created a fiction saying that Nevada was the injured party, not the litigants, and, thus, the limitations period never began to run. (1 AA 144:8-11, 150-153). The district court provided no legal authority for this fiction.

Public policy favors finality of judgments. *See e.g. Bonnell v. Lawrence*, 128 Nev. 394, 401, 282 P.3d 712, 716 (2012). This is especially true after a final Decree of Divorce has been in place for fourteen years and after a party remarried. Setting aside a decree after so long would have made a party a retroactive bigamist. Further, there are evidence issues—trying to obtain documents, trying to find witnesses, and memory issues after fourteen years

makes these things problematic, at best. Documents are often destroyed by record keepers after seven years. Witnesses move. After so long, people forget things. Oddly, the district court recognized Jaswinder's arguments as to these, yet sent the matter to an evidentiary hearing anyway. (1 AA 157-58).

Still, fraud does not apply in this case as *Vaile* is controlling authority. The issue in *Vaile* is if the Decree of Divorce is void as to no proper residency and if so, the moving party must establish coercion or duress as that party was a party to the fraud. This is where estoppel comes into play as the courts will not reward a party to fraud with relief from the court. *Vaile*, 118 Nev. at 273-74, 44 P.3d at 514.

The district court erred in not dismissing the Motion to Set Aside as being time-barred. The longest limitations period that could apply ran more than a decade before the Motion to Set Aside was filed—and that limitations period does not even apply as a shorter one for void applies.

As such, the Court should reverse the district court and deny the Motion to Set Aside as time barred.

# II. THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN DENYING JASWINDER'S REQUEST FOR ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS

### A. STANDARD OF REVIEW

The denial of attorney's fees by a district court is reviewed for an abuse

of discretion. *See Jones v. Jones*, 86 Nev. 879, 885, 478 P.2d 148, 152 (1970). "[A] district court's factual determinations will be disturbed only when unsupported by substantial evidence." *Jensen v. Jenson*, 104 Nev. 95, 99-100, 753 P.2d 342, 345 (1988).

### B. ARGUMENT

The district court abused its discretion when it denied Jaswinder attorney's fees. Jaswinder prevailed on a motion for judgment on the evidence as Rajwant failed to even present evidence of the mandatory element of coercion on direct examination. (*See generally* 3 AA 463-487; 3 AA 504; 2 AA 288). Failing to even offer evidence as to a mandatory element makes the claim per se frivolous. *See e.g. Woods-Gaston v. Sequoyah Enterprises, Inc.*, 340 Fed.Appx 450, 452 (10th Cir. 2009); *see also Cormier v. P.P.G. Industries, Inc.*, 519 F. Supp. 211, 272 (W.D. Louisiana 1981); *State ex rel. Cephas v. Boles*, 142 S.E.2d 463, 465 (W.Va. 1965).

Jaswinder requested attorney's fees under NRS 18.010 (frivolous position) and EDCR 7.60 (unnecessarily protracting the litigation). (1 AA 67). As shown failure to present any evidence at all as to a mandatory element of a claim makes bringing the claim per se frivolous.

Still, the district court denied Jaswinder attorney's fees. (2 AA 288:14-15). Specifically, the district court found that Jaswinder was not a prevailing

1 | ] 2 | 3 4 | 6 (Id.).

affirmed as Rajwant failed to provide any evidence at all as to a mandatory element of her claim, but Jaswinder was not a prevailing party. This reasoning defies all logic.

So, Jaswinder won outright and had the Decree of Divorce

The district court also made a finding that Jaswinder did not have clean hands. (2 AA 287). This is not supported by any facts. The present round of litigation was instigated by Rajwant. The underlying divorce was fourteen years ago. Rajwant knew that she could not make out a mandatory element of the claim, and the district court even commended Rajwant on her honesty as to there being no coercion. (2 AA 287:16-20).

There can be no proper finding that Jaswinder had unclean hands during this round of litigation. Rajwant waited fourteen years to file her motion, brought the matter to a motion hearing, discovery, and an evidentiary hearing and did not even present evidence as to a mandatory element of her claim—and did not even cite to controlling authority nonetheless. Yet, Jaswinder has unclean hands?

As such, the district court abused its discretion when it denied Jaswinder attorney's fees. The Court should reverse the district court and remand the matter to the district court for a determination of attorney's fees and costs to Jaswinder.

| 1  | III. THE DISTRICT COURT PROPERLY DENIED RAJWANT'S                              |
|----|--|
| 2  | MOTION TO SET ASIDE; HOWEVER, RAJWANT FAILED TO                                |
| 3  | ARGUE MANY ARGUMENTS IN THE DISTRICT COURT;                                    |
| 4  | THUS, THIS COURT SHOULD BAR SUCH ARGUMENTS                                     |
| 5  | A. STANDARD OF REVIEW  |
| 6  | Determinations on a set aside request are reviewed for an abuse of             |
| 7  | discretion. See Ogawa v. Ogawa, 125 Nev. 660, 668, 221 P.3d 699, 704           |
| 8  | (2009). A decision to grant or deny a motion for judgment on the evidence is   |
| 9  | reviewed for an abuse of discretion. See S.E. Johnson Companies, Inc. v. Jack, |
| 10 | 752 N.E.2d 72, 76 (Indiana App. 2001). <sup>2</sup>                            |
| 11 | "A point not urged in the trial court, unless it goes to the jurisdiction of   |
| 12 | that court, is deemed to have been waived and will not be considered on        |
| 13 | appeal." Old Aztec Mine, Inc. v. Brown, 97 Nev. 49, 52-53, 623 P.2d 981, 983-  |
| 14 | 84 (1981) (emphasis added); see also Nadler v. Eighth Judicial District Court, |
| 15 | 136 Nev, n.3, P.3d, n.3, 136 Nev. Adv. Op. 24, at *4 n.3, 2020                 |
| 16 | WL 2111859, n.3 (2020).  |
| 17 | B. ARGUMENT  |
| 18 | The Vaile Section  |
| 19 | Rajwant fails to argue the actual issue on appeal, but instead argues          |

Nevada law is scant on this issue.

things she never argued before.

The issue on appeal is whether or not the district court erred in granting the motion for judgment on the evidence / directed verdict which resulted in the denial of the Motion to Set Aside. In the district court, Rajwant cited only fraud and that the Decree of Divorce is void as her bases to set aside the Decree of Divorce. (1 AA 46). Rajwant did not cite to *Vaile* in her motion. (*See generally* 1 AA 41-50). *Vaile* is controlling authority. (*See e.g.* 1 AA 147-149, 150-155; 1 AA 143-144<sup>3</sup>). Jaswinder cited to *Vaile*, however. (1 AA 64, 66). Rajwant finally cites to the controlling authority in her Reply Brief, but only to state "that it [the *Vaile* standard] is a facts-driven analysis." (1 AA 79:4-12).

In her Opening Brief, however, Rajwant raises numerous arguments for the first time. Additionally, Rajwant puts the cart before the proverbial horse numerous times. *Vaile* is controlling authority, and Rajwant had to meet the standard in *Vaile*, but utterly failed to.

Vaile's factual history and the resulting standard are key to this case.

Vaile's factual history is remarkably similar to the present case—even the

The district court ordered that the elements that had to be established were that no party actually ever was a valid Nevada resident at any relevant time and that Rajwant was coerced by Jaswinder into signing the divorce documents. This is the standard in *Vaile*.

district court noted this. (3 AA 488:17-21). In *Vaile*, though no party resided here, both parties stipulated to a divorce in Clark County, Nevada. 118 Nev. at 266-67, 118 Nev. at 509-10. The same occurred in the present case. (1 AA 1-10). After one party evidently grew dissatisfied with agreement, that party moved to set aside the "fraudulent" decree of divorce. *Id.*, 118 Nev. at 268, 44 P.3d at 511. The same occurred in the present case. (1 AA 41).

Vaile held that when both parties enter into a stipulation for a divorce in Nevada, but no one actually ever had proper residency, the moving party must also establish duress or coercion as to signing the divorce documents. 118 Nev. at 273-74, 44 P.3d at 514. The basis for having to show coercion is due to judicial estoppel—a party who has stated an oath in a prior proceeding, "as in a pleading," that a given fact is true, may not be allowed to deny the same fact in a subsequent action. *Id.* Thus, the two-prong test under *Vaile*—no party had proper residency and the moving party signed the divorce documents under duress or due to coercion.

Rajwant now wants this Court to address numerous arguments in support of her legal claims on appeal that were never properly raised in the district court, to wit:

- She did not understand the decree;
  - o Opening Brief at 9:13-14

- She had no reliance on the divorce;<sup>4</sup>
  - o Opening Brief at 9:14-16
- There was no intent to form an agreement as she could not read the Decree
  - o Opening Brief at 13-14.
- She was not operating with reasonable knowledge regarding the Decree as she did not know what it meant
  - o Opening Brief at 13:6-11

Rajwant further states several matters as fact, when they are not. Rajwant states that Jaswinder took title to real property as a "married man". (Opening Brief at 9:25-26). However, Jaswinder never signed the deed. (3 AA 424-425).<sup>5</sup> Rajwant claims it was a "paper divorce". (Opening Brief at 10:20). Yet, she married another man after the divorce. (1 AA 45:22-25). Even assuming *arguendo* that Rajwant was coerced into the other marriage, that she

This appears to be a significant misrepresentation. Rajwant, knowing she was divorced, married someone else. (1 AA 45:22-24).

Rajwant did not include any of the trial exhibits in her appendix. When an appellant fails to include necessary documentation in the record, it is presumed that the missing portion supports the district court's decision. *See Cuzze v. Univ. and Community College Sys. of Nev.*, 123 Nev. 598, 603, 172 P.3d 131, 134-35 (2007).

3

4

5

6

8

7

9

10

11

12

13

14

15 16

17

18

19

20

remarried verifies that the divorce was not a paper divorce—the divorce had a significant legal effect of permitting Rajwant to remarry.

Rajwant claims she had no idea her marriage did not exist from 2004-2018. (Opening Brief at 11:10-11). This is legal rubbish. Blackletter law contradicts Rajwant's claim. Settlement agreements in divorce cases are in the nature of contract law. See Mack v. Estate of Mack, 125 Nev. 80, 95, 206 P.3d 98, 108 (2009). A person who signs a contact is presumed to know and understand its contents; the failure to read a contract, or to apprehend the rights and obligations under it, will not prevent a waiver of its terms or conditions. 13 WILLISTON ON CONTRACTS § 39.22 (4th ed. 2020); accord 7AP1 Am.Jur. PL. & Pr. Forms Contracts § 126 (March 2020) (if a person fails or refuses to read a contract, she cannot them complain of its provisions, nor claim that it contained provisions she knew nothing about); see also E. Allen Farnsworth, CONTRACTS § 3.7 at 116 (1982) (provisions written in a foreign language are binding even if the person did not understand the language).

Rajwant cites to General Motors v. Jackson, 111 Nev. 1026, 1031-32, 900 P.2d 345, 348-49 (1995) in support of her claim that she did not understand the decree when she signed it. This reliance is misplaced. Firstly, this was never properly raised in the district court. That aside, the case does not actually support her position. General Motors deals with capacity to enter into a color
 m
 sq
 in
 ap

mental illness or mental defect, or being intoxicated—nothing about not speaking the language. Well-settled law provides that contract provisions being in a different language does not prevent being bound to the terms—the same applies to blind and illiterate people. *See e.g. Paper Exp., Ltd. V. Pfankuch Maschinen GmbH*, 972 F.2d 753, 757 (7th Cir. 1992).

Rajwant argues that the district court though *Vaile* was bad law and should be overturned. (Opening Brief at 16-17). Rajwant never made these arguments until her appeal.

Rajwant fails to address that she simply did not present any evidence of coercion or duress at trial. Rajwant was on notice that the *Vaile* standard was going to apply, yet she failed to present evidence as to coercion or duress. Now, she is making up new arguments in an attempt to confuse the Court and cloud the real issues.

As Rajwant never made most of the claims with the district court, the same should be considered waived. Rajwant makes several assertions that are not factually or legally supports—these should be discounted. Rajwant is purposefully not addressing the *Vaile* standard as she clearly and undeniably failed to meet the second prong of proving she signed under duress or due to coercion. Rajwant is putting the cart before the horse and is hoping the Court

will not see that she is failing to address the actual issues on appeal that were preserved for appeal.

As Rajwant never presented any evidence as to coercion or duress, she cannot show that the district court abused its discretion in denying the Motion to Set Aside.

### The Rule 60(b) Arguments

Rajwant asserts that the district court erred as it did not consider that Rule 60(b) could be used to set aside the Decree of Divorce. This assertion is absurd.

NRCP 60(b) is the set aside rule. In *Vaile*, the mother moved to set aside the Decree as to it being void, which is the current NRCP 60(b)(4). As the district court applied *Vaile*, it applied NRCP 60(b)(4) for the first part of its argument (the residency issue and the decree being void). However, as to the second prong, judicial estoppel applies under *Vaile*. So, what Rajwant is arguing is that judicial estoppel should not apply—or rather that *Vaile* should be overruled. Rajwant also now wants NRCP 60(b)(6) (any other reason that justifies relief) to give her relief. Rajwant failed to argue these in the district court, so the argument should be deemed waived.

Rajwant's argument fails aside from *Vaile* and aside from not being properly raised in the district court, which they were not. The time limit for an

ac
 or
 or
 is
 pr
 ye
 to

action for fraud 3 years. *See* NRS 11.190(3)(d). As stated, Rajwant waited over fourteen years to file her motion to set aside, which is more than a decade over the limitations period. Even if the Rule 60(b)(6) savings clause applied, it is subject to being filed within a reasonable time. Assuming this argument were properly raised in the district court, which it was not, surely waiting over 14 years to set aside a decree is unreasonable. To say that waiting 14 years to file to set aside a decree is to wholly vitiate the policy of finality of judgments. *See e.g. Bonnell*, 128 Nev. at 401, 282 P.3d at 716.

Rajwant makes other arguments, which were not addressed in the district court. Rajwant cites to *Kahn v. Orme*, 108 Nev. 510, 835 P.2d 790 (1992), and says she meets the standard therein. (Opening Brief at 22-26). Rajwant never made these arguments before the district court—same as almost all of her arguments on appeal. The Court should consider these arguments waived.

In her last section in the Opening Brief, Rajwant outright calls for the reversal of *Vaile*. As Rajwant failed to even initially cite to *Vaile*, let alone ever argue in the district court that *Vaile* did not apply or that it was bad law, these arguments should be considered waived.

As Rajwant failed to raise these claims in the district court, they should be considered waived. Moreover, the claims are time-barred.

### **CONCLUSION**

| The Court should reverse the district court as to the       | ne denial of the reques  |
|---|--------------------------|
| to dismiss the motion as time barred. The Court show        | uld reverse the district |
| court as to the denial of attorney's fees and costs to Jass | winder and remand the    |
| matter for a determination of the award of fees to Jaswino  | der.                     |

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